
 

 

CHILI ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
March 27, 2018

A meeting of the Chili Zoning Board was held on March 27, 2018 at the Chili Town Hall, 3333 
Chili Avenue, Rochester, New York  14624 at 7:00 p.m.  The meeting was called to order by 
Chairperson Adam Cummings.

PRESENT:  Mark Merry, Fred Trott, James Valerio, James Wiesner and Chairperson 
Adam Cummings.

ALSO PRESENT: Eric Stowe, Assistant Town Counsel; Paul Wanzenried, Building 
Department Manager.  

Chairperson Adam Cummings declared this to be a legally constituted meeting of the Chili 
Zoning Board.  He explained the meeting's procedures and introduced the Board and front table.  
He announced the fire safety exits.

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Any issues with the signs for these three applications?  

The Board indicated they had no problem with the notification signs.  

1. Application of Cedars of Chili Housing Development, owner; 94 Old Scottsville Chili 
Road, Rochester, New York 14624 for: A. Variance to allow three double-faced 
freestanding signs per plan submitted (2- 4’7” x 3’2”, 1- 4’2” x 3’2”) where 2- 4’ x 3’ 
double-faced freestanding signs were previously approved in 1984, variance for signs to 
be 7’2” high (5’ allowed), variance for street numbers not to be on signs, and B. Variance 
to allow three wall signs per plan submitted (2- 3’ x 1’9”, 1- 4’11” x 6’2”) at property 
located at 94 Old Scottsville Chili Road in R.M. zone. 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Letter A and B, I would like to treat those as two -- I will call them 
packages.  We'll consider A first which is the three double-faced, three freestanding signs and 
their height and the fact that they won't have street numbers on the sides.  Then we'll go to the 
wall signs on the second decision sheet.  

Before we move forward, I do want to note on this application that I do have a letter from 
the Monroe County Department of Planning and Development that they have no comments and 
have deemed it a local matter.  And with the instructions for yourself and any other applicants 
tonight, if you could identify yourself and address for the record and a quick description of what 
your application is.   

Frank Freida and Lynette Irwin were present to represent the application.

MR. FREIDA:  Winn Companies, Regional Maintenance Manager.  Address, I live at 210 
wind set point, Rochester, New York 14612.  

We're looking to replace the old signs we have up there.  We were talking about A, I 
believe it is.  And so the three freestanding signs, what we were -- thought there were signs there, 
so we're replacing in kind what we thought we were doing.  We didn't know there was a permit 
from '84 that said special stuff on it for variances.  So we're coming to get the variance to make it 
right for -- with the Town for what we redeveloped at the property at Cedars.  

I don't know if you have old pictures what was there, compared to the new.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  I don't, no.  
MR. FREIDA:  I have them individually.  That was the old.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Yep.  
MR. FREIDA:  This is what we replaced it with.  So we used the same box, just refaced it.  

Took the faces down, put a new sign and post up.  That is what we did on all three of them, just 
like that.  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  So once again, you don't have a microphone in front of you.  
MR. FREIDA:  I'm sorry.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  For the public, all three signs used the base and you replaced the 

inside of the signs and took off the roof structure -- 
MR. FREIDA:  Correct. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  -- on those two signs that were existing?  
MR. FREIDA:  Correct.  
FRED TROTT:  How did it get bigger?  
MR. FREIDA:  I don't know how it got bigger.  We went with the posts and refaced them 

and put it in between so we didn't recreate.  We didn't put in new posts.  
JAMES WIESNER:  I don't think we were in compliance before or anything.  They are just 

catching up. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  It is the measurement of the sign portion; whereas, now there are 

two symbols, the house and the handicapped sign which could possibly move it wider -- 
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MR. FREIDA:  A little wider possibly. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  -- than the original.  The actual board is the same, but the measured 

sign from what they did in 1984 might be different, the inside measurement of the sign.  I don't 
know if we have any records on that, Paul (Wanzenried), or not.  I'm only guessing.  

PAUL WANZENRIED:  (Indicating). 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  We have no documentation for that.  It is a minor increase.  Once 

again, you're using the same post.  
MR. FREIDA:  We replaced the post with black going around it, is all we did.  
JAMES WIESNER:  We're just talking about the street signs now. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  We are looking at the monument signs, the street signs.  
JAMES WIESNER:  I don't have any comment.  
MARK MERRY:  Street address?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  The street address, I think it is unique in this one, because each of 

the units has their own street address.  So the complex itself doesn't have an emergency response 
address.  So it is difficult to pick which unit has to have the number on the sign --  

MR. FREIDA:  Correct. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  -- is that correct?  
MR. FREIDA:  Correct.  Each unit has their own number and street. 
JAMES WIESNER:  Those are private roads inside?  
MR. FREIDA:  Yes.  Everything is maintained by Cedars of Chili.  
MS. IRWIN:   We have the Beaver Road entrance and we have --- 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  You can speak if you're part of the applicant, but you have to say 

your name and address.  
MS. IRWIN:  Lynette Irwin.  I'm the Property Manager.  I live in 604 Burritt Road in 

Hilton.  We also have two street fronts so we're -- on Beaver Road there is an entrance and Old 
Scottsville Road entrance, so the 94 wouldn't apply to the Beaver Road street sign.  So that is 
why we didn't want to put the 94 there. 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  And for 94 Old Scottsville Chili Road, is that a particular building?  
MS. IRWIN:  No.  That is the taxed land.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Okay.  On the height, it used to be -- well, I think it was -- 5 feet is 

allowed.  I don't believe a variance was granted in the past, so the sign is still the same height it 
was before, because you used the same -- 

MR. FREIDA:  Actually probably less with the roof.  If you -- if -- the old picture -- 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  True.  I don't know how they measured the old ones.  But the posts 

themselves -- 
MR. FREIDA:  Are the same. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  -- are the same.  
MR. FREIDA:  I can leave these with you if that helps. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  That would be fine.  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None.

Fred Trott made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application and James 
Valerio seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion to close the Public 
Hearing.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Condition of approval, goes without saying you will have to get 
sign permits from the Building Department.  

Just to be clear on height, the 7 feet, 2 inches high is the measurement from the ground to 
the top of the post or is it to the top of the sign, meaning the rectangle, the board in between?  

MR. FREIDA:  Top of the post. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Top of the post, okay.  And the bases, you replaced the old brick 

ones?  
MR. FREIDA:  We just refaced it with new brick. 
ERIC STOWE:  Did we clarify it is the amendment of the existing variance, versus the 

granting of a variance?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  We did not.  So on the first part of this one, um, as was noted in the 

public notice, there was a variance granted in 1984 for 24 foot by 3 foot double-faced 
freestanding signs.  So we're now amending that previously granted variance with what you're 
asking for for tonight.  

MR. FREIDA:  Okay.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Meaning, the old one doesn't exist any more.  It's being replaced 

with this one.  
MR. FREIDA:  This new one.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Does that clear it for the Board?  All right.  Any other comments?  
ERIC STOWE:  Can we do one more?  As a -- just so we're not having three signs at the 

road, if the Board wants to talk about that one, as Paul (Wanzenried) pointed out, it's interior on 
the parcel. 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Oh, with the leasing office?  
ERIC STOWE:  Correct. 
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ADAM CUMMINGS:  Yeah.  That is not specified in here.  
ERIC STOWE:  I think that would -- not telling you to do that one, but that may be the 

smallest variance possible and keeping it on the interior.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Yep.  
So that condition -- we placed that as a condition that one of these signs -- one of these 

three freestanding signs, double-faced, would -- needs to be on the interior.
ERIC STOWE:  Only two permitted at the road. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Better to word it that way.  
ERIC STOWE:  You're limiting where as opposed to controlling where -- 
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Note the interior sign is smaller, I believe, than the other two 

signs.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Okay.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  So the 14'2" by 3'2" is the interior leasing sign.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  So we're limiting the -- the additional sign, the one sign at 4'2" by 

3'2".  It can only be located in the interior of the property.  And -- 
ERIC STOWE:  Cannot be located on -- 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Cannot be located next to -- adjacent to the road.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  At any entry point. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  I think everybody understands it.  Now we have it in the right  

legalese.  
All right.  Now, with those two conditions, I will move forward. 

Adam Cummings made a motion to declare the Board lead agency as far as SEQR, and based on 
evidence and information presented at this meeting, determined the application to be an Unlisted 
action with no significant environmental impact, and James Wiesner seconded the motion.   The 
Board all voted yes on the motion.

Mark Merry made a motion to approve the application with the following conditions, and Fred 
Trott seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion. 

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 5 yes with the following conditions:
  

1.  Sign permits to be obtained from the Building Department.

2.  Cannot have more than 2 signs at road frontage.  The smaller sign shall be 
located in the interior of the site, as depicted in the application materials. 

The following finding of fact was cited:

1.  The new signs use the same bases and posts as the existing signs that were
       approved in 1984.  Since there are numerous units in this complex, 

requiring specific street address on the freestanding signs did not make 
sense as emergency responders will be directed to addresses for specific 
units.

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Now we'll move onto letter B, variance to allow three wall signs 
per the plan submitted, two of them being 3' by 1'9" and the other one being one sign 4'11" by 
6'2".  

MR. FREIDA:  I don't know if it says on the application, these are interior, too, to the site.  
They're not -- 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Okay.  So none -- well, none of them will be on buildings facing 
either of the roads?  

MR. FREIDA:  Correct.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  So it is all on -- is there an address for that building?  
MS. IRWIN:  1 Norfolk Drive.  
MR. FREIDA:  1 Norfolk Drive. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  1 Norfolk Drive?  
MS. IRWIN:  Yes.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Side table, can we limit it to a specific building inside this 

complex?  Wall signs being -- because there is a lot of buildings.  
ERIC STOWE:  If it is per the plan, per the submission.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Okay.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  You think, Adam (Cummings), we would limit it to the 

Community Center?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  That is what I just asked. 
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Or community building. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  The community building at 1 Norfolk Drive, which right now it is 1 

Norfolk.  Even if it changed to a different street name down the line, we'll identify it as the 
community building currently at 1 Norfolk Drive.  

MR. FREIDA:  Correct.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Okay.  That way just can't put them on one of the buildings along 

Beaver Road or -- or Old Scottsville Chili Road.  
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JAMES WIESNER:  I just wanted to confirm, so the 23 feet ones are on -- the signs on the 
building that have the wooden background?  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Yep.  
JAMES WIESNER:  Then the 6 foot one is the Cedars of Chili?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  That's correct.  
JAMES WIESNER:  That's all I have.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Those two wooden ones, one says -- identified on the photos, one 

says, "Leasing center."  The other says, "Community Center."
I just point out the contents so you know which ones we're looking at.  It is tough to read 

them on the -- the farther view.  
JAMES WIESNER:  Chili is the one we didn't get in the picture.  That is why I asked.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  All set?  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None.

Fred Trott made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application and James 
Valerio seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion to close the Public 
Hearing.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.

ADAM CUMMINGS:  On this one, there is going to be just one condition of approval and 
that's going to be a sign permit that needs to be obtained.  

JAMES WIESNER:  You mentioned about 1 Norfolk Drive and the Community Center.  Is 
that a second condition or is that just --- 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Um --
JAMES WIESNER:  How are you going to apply that?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Well, it's -- Counsel, should we add that on and mention the 

community building street address as a condition or is it enough to say it's per the plan and it is 
stated in the minutes?  

ERIC STOWE:  Not enough for the minutes.  Per the plan submitted on such-and-such.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Per plan -- 
ERIC STOWE:  Or 1 Norfolk Drive, per plan submitted.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Located on -- I'm getting to be more specific.  What direction -- 

cardinal direction is that?  Is that facing -- I get disoriented getting inside there. 
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Northeast. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Located on the northeast side of the building -- the northeast side of 

the community building at 1 Norfolk Drive per plan submitted on -- I don't have an exact date 
readily available.  Per plan submitted on February 16th, 2018.  All right.  

Adam Cummings made a motion to declare the Board lead agency as far as SEQR, and based on 
evidence and information presented at this meeting, determined the application to be an Unlisted 
action with no significant environmental impact, and Mark Merry seconded the motion.   The 
Board all voted yes on the motion.

James Wiesner made a motion to approve the application with the following conditions, and 
Mark Valerio seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion. 

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 5 yes with the following conditions:
  

1.  Sign permits to be obtained from the Building Department.

2.  Signs to only be located on the Northeast side of the Community Building 
at 1 Norfolk Drive, per plan submitted on 2/16/18.

The following finding of fact was cited:

1.  The new signs will not be visible from any public roadways or adjacent 
properties. They provide useful wayfinding purposes for this rather large 
complex of buildings.  

2. Application of Tim Giarrusso, Rochester Community Inclusion Rowing Inc., owner; 265
Bretlyn Circle, Rochester, New York 14618 for: A. Variance to allow front parking for 
11 vehicles per plan submitted for proposed boathouse facility (no front parking allowed), 
and B. Variance to amend approval granted on 2/18/67 for new building size to be 6,478 
sq. ft. (1,800 sq. ft. previously approved) at property located at 20 Black Creek Road in 
RAO-20 & FPO zone. 

Andy Hart and Dennis Fronheiser were present to represent the application.

MR. HART:  Good evening.  My name is Andy Hart with Bergmann Associates here 
representing Rochester Community Inclusive Rowing.  Our address is 280 East Broad Street, 
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Suite 200, Rochester, New York 14604.  And we are asking for a variance to allow for parking 
within the front yard of the proposed building located at 20 Black Creek Road.  

Um, we feel that the proposed -- the -- the proposed parking cannot be achieved by any 
other means feasible.  The size of the building that we're proposing, 6,478 square feet, is required 
to provide the storage for the boating that is required to make the facility viable in terms of 
financing.  

So we do have to have parking per the code, per the Planning Board code and the Planning 
Board has asked us to locate the parking perpendicular to the building as we have shown it now.  
We're showing five parking spaces to be built as part of the construction of the building and 
showing six spaces to be reserved should they ever need to be constructed if parking becomes an 
issue.  

Um, we don't think that the parking -- this would create any negative, undesirable character 
of the neighborhood.  Across the street is the ARC of Monroe and they actually have ten parking 
spaces that are forward of their building.  I'm not sure if that is really considered their front yard 
or not, but it looks and has the same feel what we're proposing here, so we don't feel it will really 
be a detriment to the character of the neighborhood.  

In terms of the other issues we're looking at is the proposed parking.  This lot is at the end 
of the street and really the only -- and it is really next to a very large parking lot that the DEC 
owns today.  

So we don't think that this would be a big detriment to the neighborhood at all.  
Did you want to act -- 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Yes.  Let's keep it split up to A and B.  So let's stick with the front 

parking first.  
This is a unique area.  DEC parking lot is there.  The ARC does have a wall built around 

there now, but they do have front parking.  This is actually front parking to Black Creek Road, 
not Scottsville Road.  

JAMES WIESNER:  I don't know if it has a direct impact on this, but as far as access to the 
creek, you're kind of boxed in.  That access would be out through the front of the building?  
Around through the Monroe County Park to get to the Black Creek or --  

MR. HART:  No.  There will be man doors and overhead doors on the Black Creek side of 
the building that will allow us to access. 

JAMES WIESNER:  On the back side. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  I'm assuming to get access to the Black Creek, you will go across 

the DEC lands?  
MR. HART:  We are.  We have an agreement we're getting processed with the DEC right 

now, a stewardship agreement.  Rochester Community Inclusive Rowing has agreed to help 
maintain the property to allow for that access.  They have agreed to it verbally.  They're just 
reviewing the application now.  They're also going to allow us to put in our own dock, as well, 
off their own dock.  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Okay.  Once again, not -- I agree with the questions.  Not totally 
pertinent to our parking question, but it is a good one to know the feasibility of this facility to be 
located here.  

MR. HART:  Sure.  We are providing landscaping, too, as part of the requirement to help 
screen that for the neighbors, as well.  That is on the west side of the property.  

MARK MERRY:  Just wondering if you have explored any option with the DEC about a 
license agreement for those parking spaces next to the building?  

MR. HART:  They say the parking lot is open to the public so the public can park there.  
There is no real agreement we can achieve in terms of actual number of parking spaces that we 
could reserve for our purposes.  Um, we have kind of said in the agreement that we hope that the 
volunteers would park in the DEC parking spaces.  Typically, it's between one and two cars for 
the volunteers, and then people that are accessing their boats would park in the parking lot that is 
provided on our site in the five spaces.  There is really no -- they haven't really said you can have 
all 11 spaces that we have here for your use.  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Right.  Because it is first come, first serve. 
MR. HART:  Open, public land, right.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  And once again, you're land-banking the western side.  You're only 

proposing five?  
MR. HART:  Correct.  We're proposing five. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  That is the minimum amount you would need. 
MR. HART:  We feel we can probably get away with three, but the Planning Board felt we 

should go with five just to be safe.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Okay.  
MARK MERRY:  So it is more for convenience why you don't put the parking on the other 

side of the building then?  
MR. HART:  Correct.  
MARK MERRY:  I don't have any other questions, thank you.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Plus if you put parking on the other side of the building, I'm not 

sure how you get boats out easily.  
MR. HART:  There is really no access.  
MARK MERRY:  Convenience for the plan is what he is raising.  
FRED TROTT:  Why only five parking spots?  I -- 
MR. HART:  To construct five first?  
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FRED TROTT:  You think you would have more?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  They wanted three and the Planning Board made them go up to 

five.  
FRED TROTT:  So you don't think that you will need more parking?  
MR. HART:  We don't think we'll need more.  We have studied other sites that had the 

same facilities.  Typically the amount of boats they have in the water at one time, it doesn't -- it 
doesn't have more than three parking spaces used at one time.  

FRED TROTT:  Okay.  I guess I was thinking like that rowing crew you see, like RIT, it is 
not the same thing. 

MR. HART:  Not quite the same thing, no.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Well, they row the same boats, but this one is more of a special -- 

well, this one is specific to special needs and disabled people so there would be a lot of van 
pooling and bussing.  

FRED TROTT:  I understand that.  No further questions.  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None.

Fred Trott made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application and Mark 
Valerio seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion to close the Public 
Hearing.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.

ADAM CUMMINGS:  So for this one, it is strictly the front parking spaces, to reiterate 
that.  And I don't see anything else to discuss on it.  

Adam Cummings made a motion to declare the Board lead agency as far as SEQR, and based on 
evidence and information presented at this meeting, determined the application to be an Unlisted 
Action with no significant environmental impact, and Mark Valerio seconded the motion.   The 
Board all voted yes on the motion.

Fred Trott made a motion to approve the application with no conditions, and Mark Valerio 
seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion. 

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 5 yes with no conditions and the following
finding of fact was cited:  

1.  This parcel is unique as its adjacent neighboring property to the east is a 
public parking lot owned by the NYS Department of Environmental 
Conservation.  Several other businesses in this area have front parking and 
rear parking would require parking to be closer to nearby residential 
properties.

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Now we'll move onto letter B, which is the amendment of the 
approval that was granted from 1967, so we're going to have 6,478 square feet.  I'm guessing that 
1800 square feet was for a house, a residential back then.  We have no idea.  

PAUL WANZENRIED:  No, I do.  You asked if it was for a house.  I shook my head no.  
No, no.  It is not for a house. 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  So it was not for residential?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  It was for a similar use.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Oh, even better.  That's the clarification I was looking for.  That's 

great.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  They have a Land Use Variance for this purpose, so that's what it 

was based on before.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Okay.  All right.  So now we're just looking to upsize this and 

replace that old approval with 6,478?  
MR. HART:  Correct.  
JAMES WIESNER:  I guess I'm interested to know what is going to be in here that 

demands so much space. 
MR. HART:  Sure.  Um, inside the building we would be storing the boats that would be 

used on the water, so -- 
JAMES WIESNER:  So there is outside storage as well as inside?  
MR. HART:  No.  They're all inside storage.  All inside the building. 
JAMES WIESNER:  I guess I was looking at the little fingers coming off the building.  I 

thought that was boat storage back there.  
MR. HART:  No.  Those are gravel ramps that would lead you off the -- out of the 

building, down towards the water.  
JAMES WIESNER:  Okay.  
MR. HART: The building has to be raised 2 feet to get out of the flood plain, so those will 

be gravel ramps that get you down into the grade.  Inside the building will be a small office, 
mechanical space to heat the building.  There will be some light areas that people can use to 
warm up before they row that will be up on the second floor of the building, and there will be 
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some other types of storage in them besides boats.  Some equipment and such.  
JAMES WIESNER:  So this is canoes, kayaks?  
MR. HART; they're mostly all of the sculling. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  The sculling and probably to accommodate eight-person boats. 
MR. HART:  Correct.  The larger eight-person boats.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  They're about 40, 45 feet long.  
MR. FRONHEISER:  64.  8 is 64.  4 is 45.  2-person is 34 and 1-person is 26.  So it's -- 
MR. HART:  Pretty long. 
MR. FRONHEISER:  There is a lot of air space in the building with these long, skinny, 

really expensive boats. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Can you identify yourself?
MR. FRONHEISER:  My name is Dennis Fronheiser, Secretary of Rochester Community 

Inclusive Rowing.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Thank you.  
MARK MERRY:  How many bays will you have here?  That is quite a large facility. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  I think it says four there.  
MARK MERRY:  Four bays for the boat house?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Is that what that lower left picture on the elevation is showing, four 

bays?  
MR. HART:  Oh, yes.  It is carved off into four sections. 
MARK MERRY:  Four doors, four bays?  
MR. HART:  Yes. 
MARK MERRY:  What are the width of the bays?  
MR. HART:  Roughly, if I look at the plan, they're roughly 18'9", plus or minus.  
MARK MERRY:  How many boats do you imagine you will try to store in that facility?  
MR. FRONHEISER:  80.  
MR. HART:  80 boats.  
JAMES WIESNER:  8 or 80?  
MR. HART:  80. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  They get stored on racks.  The racks -- 
MR. FRONHEISER:  That would be maximum capacity.  
MARK MERRY:  You currently have a location in the area today, correct?  
MR. FRONHEISER:  Presently we're running our program cooperatively out of the 

Genesee Rowing Club, which is in Monroe County Park, Genesee Valley Park, the Monroe 
County site.  We have rented, leased four spaces in there.  We have four boats outside there.  We 
have one more boat at the Genesee Waterway Center, which is across the river on the city side.  

In addition to that, we have another nine boats which cannot be used because we have no 
place to put them.  We're keeping our activities scaled back at the moment because we don't have 
a place to put the boats, so we can't row the people.  

Um, the United States Rowing has a subsidiary called Freedom Rows, which is funded by 
the United States Armed Services, which provides opportunities for disabled veterans to row.  
They are willing to give us two additional -- two more boats for rowing.  So we have the 
opportunity in the future to expand our rowing to more veterans.  We are unable to find space to 
do this.  

Another aspect is at the Genesee Valley Park, Genesee Rowing Club where we're running 
our program, their boathouses literally are underneath 390 and the constant road noise is not 
conducive to calm rowing for veterans with Posttraumatic Stress Disorder.  

So that we -- we have been looking for another place to move our program to which is 
calm, quiet, has the space for the boats that we have and in order to fund the building of the 
facility, we would look to lease out storage space for these boats.  That's the origin of the size.  

Originally we had anticipated a three-bay boathouse with a second story.  Um, when we 
looked into the aspects of putting the second story in with the facilities upstairs, it became 
obvious people in a wheelchair, if you have to go do what you got to go do, a five-minute ride in 
an elevator was -- it wasn't going to work.  So we brought the second story down into a fourth 
bay.  

So there is actually three bays in this design which are designed for boat storage, boat 
maintenance and equipment storage and the majority of the -- one of the center bays is for our 
office area, the restroom facilities and the warm-up area.  

MARK MERRY:  Very good.  Thank you for that information.  Appreciate it.  I'm all set.  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None.

Mark Valerio made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application and Mark 
Merry seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion to close the Public 
Hearing.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Now we're looking at upsizing this one to accommodate all of this.  
Just a curiosity question, is this program looking to coordinate activities with the ARC of 
Monroe or not?  Just a curiosity.  

MR. FRONHEISER:  We have not yet pursued that opportunity just because we haven't 
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gotten around to it and because we're keeping -- we're limited in our size.  However, we presently 
have young people with cerebral palsy, Alzheimer's -- not Alzheimer's -- 

MR. HART:  Autism. 
MR. FRONHEISER:  -- autism and multiple sclerosis rowing with us.  We look forward to 

being able to give that opportunity for them.  It's something that we have talked about.  I think 
Tim did talk with the Director of the ARC after the previous meeting.  They were -- they're 
building the -- the entranceway, so we had a short conversation about that and we -- that's exactly 
the kind of opportunities we would like to present to the community and the -- the difference 
between this boathouse and the other boathouses is the other boathouses are -- I don't want to use 
the word "elitist," but they're more -- rowing is an expensive sport.  There are people who like, 
you know, a tough head competition.  There is a whole segment of society which is not being 
addressed by them, but is being addressed by us.  And so if anybody wants to go out there and 
really go gung-ho, I got the name of the guys down the river where you're going.  The people 
who are much more relaxed, recreational-oriented will be here.  

And also for our outreach with veterans -- the Veterans Center in Canandaigua, the 
Veterans Outreach Center in the city and several other veterans and alcohol abuse, stuff like that, 
we're working with them and that's the kind of area that we're focusing on.  It is kind of like 
recovery through rowing.  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Thank you.  All right.  The -- I don't have any other things to add 
on this. 

Adam Cummings made a motion to declare the Board lead agency as far as SEQR, and based on 
evidence and information presented at this meeting, determined the application to be an Unlisted 
Action with no significant environmental impact, and James Wiesner seconded the motion.   The 
Board all voted yes on the motion.

Mark Merry made a motion to approve the application with no conditions, and Mark Valerio 
seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion. 

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 5 yes with no conditions, and the following
finding of fact was cited:

1.  The increased size of the building is similar to the size of the neighboring 
ARC of Monroe County building.  Also, this structure will provide 
buffering and screening of nearby residential properties to the busy 
Scottsville Road corridor. 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  This one was also approved.  Good luck.  Continue working with 
the DEC.  That's quite a flood plain you got there.  Best of luck to you with everything.

3. Application of C & M Forwarding, 45 Jetview Drive, Rochester, New York 14624; 
property owner: 3457 Union Street LLC; for: A. Variance to allow a total of 230 parking 
spaces per plan submitted (128 cars, 102 trailers) for proposed industrial park (819 spaces 
required), B. Variance to allow front parking per plan submitted (no front parking 
allowed), C. Variance to allow loading berths to be 12.5’ wide (14’ req.) at property 
located at 3457 Union Street in L.I. zone. 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  I like how the one has been separated out.  Letter A, the total 
parking spaces.  We're going to reduce it from 819 from the code to 230 vehicle spaces, giving 
up 128 cars and 102 trailers.  When it says "cars," that means -- I'm assuming tractor-trailer cars?  

MR. COX:  No.  Cars would be regular employees, so regular pedestrian vehicles.
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Okay.  Thank you for that clarification.  
MR. COX:  I'm David Cox, with Passero Associates, the civil engineer for the project.  I 

will just give you a quick, brief introduction for C&M Forwarding.  They're a local Chili 
company that does warehousing and distribution.  It's run by Kevin Daley which his father started 
it, and they are -- they have business all over the country.  So they are really very much a 
growing business.  They're on -- Jetview Drive right now is their headquarters and they also have 
some buildings in Greece and Gates and maybe one other.  

But they are -- keep getting bigger and bigger so they're looking for some new space.  They 
found this place, this property for sale on Union Street and they really fell in love with it.  It's a 
perfect site for them.  It is just north -- it is maybe not even four miles, just a few miles north of 
490 right on Union Street, so quick access to 490.  A lot of their business is kind of out in the 
Chicago area, so they can hop right on 490 and get on the Thruway and head west.  

Or they also have stuff towards New York City, Boston, things on the East Coast, as well.  
So 490 helps them to get going that way, as well.  Industrial zoned land, in between two railroad 
tracks.  Currently they have -- don't have any facility with railroad access so they're excited to 
have that as a possibility.  So that is kind of the -- that is C&M Forwarding.  

So now I will go through -- each one will start with the parking.  So per Section 500-43(c), 
we need 819 spaces per -- per code.  But since it's warehousing -- there is some office, a small 
office space.  But since it is warehousing, I mean we just don't need 819 spaces.  So one of the 
things that we did was we created a marketing plan.  This is the full -- full build-out Master Plan.  
You know, we just wanted to say that it converted to a different use and not warehousing.  Could 
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we actually park it per code?  And the answer is yes.  So we can provide enough parking onsite.  
You know, if we get rid of the tractor-trailer and the docks and all that stuff -- so we can provide 
parking on the property.  

Not granting the variance would be bad in the fact that if we had to put in the parking 
spaces, we would have to go back into this wetland area and other areas to put in parking that 
would never get used.  So that would just -- there would be a negative impact on the 
environment.  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Once again, on that full build-out plan, you don't have a 
justification for that amount of parking spaces.  That is just designing it per code?  

MR. COX:  Right.  That would be if we had to do it per code, that is what it would look 
like.  

FRED TROTT:  Fred (Trott), is the -- the full build-out, is that all three buildings being for 
your company or the company, C&M?  

MR. COX:  No.  That is -- we don't know yet.  The first building is the only building that 
has gotten final site plan approval.  The other two buildings in the back we kind of have 
preliminary overall, but we don't know what the -- what the next two buildings will be.  It could 
be C&M Forwarding.  It could be a different user.  They're open to whatever comes along.  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  And could be a totally different building orientation. 
MR. COX:  Yeah.  
FRED TROTT:  I kind of remember this from a while ago maybe for the Planning Board. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  That could be.  Well, there was a different one, um, further to the 

south. 
JAMES WIESNER:  The machine shop. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Yes, that was being proposed.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Black Creek Industrial Park. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  That's the one.  This is different.  The other one, um, had the 

railroad, but it was visible from -- and it was zoned Residential from what I remember.  But that 
was a different application.  

FRED TROTT:  Okay.  All right.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Different site, too.  Not only different application, but a different 

property.  
FRED TROTT:  Does C&M Forwarding own the property?  
MR. COX:  Yes.  
ERIC STOWE:  I think it's 5247 -- or 3457 Union Street, LLC owns the property, but I 

believe it's common ownership of those entities.  
JAMES WIESNER:  Just going to say, the parking plan is based on the total build-out or 

initial build-out?  Some of it is based on square footage, right?  
MR. COX:  This is based on full build-out.  So if we -- you know, if he just took -- looking 

at Phase 1, that would be what would be required for Phase 1.  As far as -- 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Your variance, you're asking -- I think what Jim (Wanzenreid) is 

asking, the variance you're asking tonight is just for Phase 1. 
MR. COX:  Just for Phase 1. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  So you may be coming back in -- 
MR. COX:  Right.  We would be coming back in for Buildings 2 and 3.  Right. 
JAMES WIESNER:  So the approval by the Planning Board is just for Phase 1 at this 

point?  
MR. COX:  Correct.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Only final for Phase 1.  Preliminary for a full build-out, based on 

the most intensive use.  
JAMES WIESNER:  Okay.  That's all I have. 
MARK MERRY:  I need a point of clarification then.  There are not 819 spaces required 

for Phase 1, Building 1, 300,000 square feet, or are there?  
MR. COX:  There are.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  No.  That is for full build-out.  
MR. COX:  No.  819 is for Phase 1.  There is 2439 or something that is required for full 

build-out.  
MARK MERRY:  That is why I asked for clarification, because -- 
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Your review is only for Phase 1?  
MARK MERRY:  Right.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Oh, I see it down here.  The total proposed is 2,445 total spaces.  
MARK MERRY:  But to your earlier statement, you could land-bank the spaces that you 

cannot provide -- intended to provide day one so that use changes over time if they decide to 
vacate that building and that becomes multiple tenants. 

MR. COX:  Right.  We could provide the parking. 
MARK MERRY:  You could provide the parking for Phase 1?  
MR. COX:  Correct.  
MARK MERRY:  So we can write that in at some point I would think. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  If they change their site plan, right.  
MARK MERRY:  Thank you.  
FRED TROTT:  How many people do you need parking for?  
MR. COX:  So they have 100 employees.  Not all of them come in.  Some of them will just 

have their trucks at their house, you know, and do different deliveries or maybe they're out of 
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state or something like that.  But there is 100 employees for this -- for Phase 1 and we're 
providing 128 spaces.  

MR. VALERIO:  Where is the trailer parking?  
MR. COX:  Yep.  So here's the car parking for the employees (indicating).  Then all around 

here (indicating) and back here (indicating), that's all of the trailer parking and dock. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  From here they look like matchsticks. 
MR. COX:  Right.  
MR. VALERIO:  So the road into the -- the -- when the other two sections are added, it 

will just continue along the right side of the building?  
MR. COX:  Yep.  They will go down this way (indicating).  
ERIC STOWE:  Just -- this is -- for clarification in your decision, this is for the Phase 1 

build-out and not the full build-out?  
MR. COX:  Correct.  
ERIC STOWE:  You see, this was a coordinated review as a Type I action.  SEQR has 

been determined for all of the variances. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Yep.  
I think we mentioned that at the last meeting when we tabled it, but it's a good reiteration 

we won't be doing SEQR tonight.  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None.

James Wiesner made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application and Fred 
Trott seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion to close the Public 
Hearing.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.

FRED TROTT:  I actually was thinking that the tractor-trailers was another variance.  So 
with the tractor-trailer you have 100 and -- 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  28.  
FRED TROTT:  -- 28.  
How many would be there at any given day?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  128.  
JAMES WIESNER:  At the very most.  
MR. COX:  At the very most.  I can't -- I don't know the answer to that.  I would say maybe 

75 percent filled out.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  So you're not going to have the stockpile then over in the 

driveway?  Just showing the travel path?  
MR. COX:  No, no.  That was one of the things that C&M Forwarding was -- they're like, 

"I want parking spaces for all of the trucks and trailers.  I don't want that."
At Jetview Drive they don't have enough space. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  They were kiddy corner and double stacked. 
MR. COX:  They're all over the space.  They stack up on Jetview Drive.  So here, he -- he 

put in extra.  He was like, "I want a place for every truck that shows up," so...  
FRED TROTT:  That was my concern, is that they were minimizing their trucks to get 

everything in there. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Compared to how much they have at 45 Jetview Drive, which is 

the picture in the upper right-hand corner, this is quite a bit more.  Because now they have it on 
both sides.  You have the loading dock and you have the parking on the left side.  

FRED TROTT:  Okay.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  But all of the parking will be restricted to just the allotted spaces 

that are there.  The demarcated striped parking spaces, not in -- not -- not the automobile parking 
in the lower right, only the other ones.  Right?

Well, once again, we're not doing SEQR on this one.  So we'll move on to asking for a 
motion to -- to adopt this application pertaining to Phase 1 only and only the parking spaces, the 
count of parking spaces.  

ERIC STOWE:  A, right?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Yes.  Item A as identified on the notice.

Adam Cummings made a motion to approve the application with no conditions, and James 
Valerio seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion.  

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 5 yes with no conditions, and the following
finding of fact was cited:

1.  The reduced number of parking spaces was justified as this parcel will be 
used more for warehousing/industrial purposes and not retail, which would 
necessitate the much larger parking space count per Town Code.  Also, 
requiring the required number of parking spaces sized to accommodate 
tractor trailers would result in excessively large expanses of impervious 
parking lot areas. 



ZBA 3/27/18 - Page 11

 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  That one passed.  Now we'll move onto letter B, which is the front 
parking.  

And once again, this is the front parking not to the railroad, but to the Union Street side, 
which would pertain to a few of the tractor-trailers on the northern side and the -- thank you -- 
the -- I will call it the employee parking spaces down there.  

MR. COX:  One of the things, we looked at kind of the surrounding neighborhood and it 
looks like about 50 percent of the businesses in this area have front-yard parking, so it is not out 
of character with the neighborhood.  The other thing, when you think of front-yard parking, you 
think of up along the street, where this is actually 670 feet from Union Street.  

So even though it's front yard, it is still way off of Union Street. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  And you're quite a bit down the slope.  
MR. COX:  Yeah.  It is down probably a good 20 feet or so.  It is really down there.  You 

probably won't even see this parking unless you're really kind of looking down there.  
MR. VALERIO:  Is there any plan for trees or landscaping in front of the parking lot?  
MR. COX:  There is some existing vegetation in here and we are doing some trees in here, 

but not a -- not enough trees to create a screen or anything like that.  But there is some decorative 
trees to dress it up. 

MR. VALERIO:  What about the other side where the tractor-trailers are?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  That will be built out -- you're saying on the north side?  
MR. VALERIO:  The northeast.  
MR. COX:  There is some existing vegetation in here that is covered up.  Right here 

(indicating).  But yeah, so there are some existing trees in here that will provide some screening.  
And then some -- you know, we are providing landscaping around -- around the trucks.  

JAMES WIESNER:  Probably 500 feet off the road, I'm guessing. 
MR. COX:  670.  And one -- one of the other parts about having front-yard parking is -- 

this is the front of the building.  When you think of a warehouse building, this is a really nice 
warehouse building.  

So if we put the -- the parking in the rear, that means all of the employee parking would 
have to be back here (indicating) and offices would need to be back there (indicating).  So then 
you have the back of the building facing Union, you know, instead of the front, which looks a lot 
nicer.  

FRED TROTT:  The -- where the entranceway is, is that part of the downward ramp of 
Union Street?  

MR. COX:  This is the -- the bridge, the railroad tracks go right over here (indicating).  So 
this is part of that sloping portion of road.  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Jim (Wiesner), anything else to add?  
JAMES WIESNER:  I was going to ask you what the loading doors size were at Jetview 

Drive.  It doesn't appear they're marked.  So I don't know how much you would even be able to 
tell me. 

MR. COX:  The loading docks are spaced 12 1/2 feet.  
JAMES WIESNER:  Then you said something about industry standard.  Is there an 

organization for loading docks or is it just what is accepted?  
MR. COX:  It is just accepted as what, you know, people -- you know, with industrial uses 

and industrial warehousing, that is kind of what they do.  
MARK MERRY:  Usually determined by the length of the apron.  So it varies.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Are we talking about the loading dock widths?  
JAMES WIESNER:  Yes. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Let's hold that off to letter C.
JAMES WIESNER:  Oh, I thought you were doing both now.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  No.  Just B right now, the front parking.  
JAMES WIESNER:  Oh, there is a C.  Sorry.  I didn't see there was a C. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Mark (Merry), anything else on the front?  
MARK MERRY:  Yeah, no.  Believe me, we have enough buildings right now that we 

have two fronts only because we're not allowed to have parking in certain municipalities.  So I 
don't necessarily see why the Town wants you to have the back of the building.  You could just 
put another front on there, so it would still look nice.  Not a big fan about having the 
tractor-trailers up front.  I think Fred (Trott)'s point you will see that, even though you're that far 
off the road.  So you -- have you thought about putting a front on the back side of the building if 
you lose the ability to park up front?  

MR. COX:  Well, part of the problem with -- if we switched this and put this parking back 
here (indicating), that we would need to have -- that would put more tractor-trailer parking in the 
front.  So we're really having a -- I don't know if we can eliminate the front yard -- or the front 
parking entirely.  But we chose to have the car parking or employee parking in the front and have 
very limited truck parking.  The reason that we do have this truck parking here, is that part of the 
warehousing, um, that they do, does have some cross dock facilities.  So that, you know, when 
trucks come in, it is -- they're taking out of that and then going into other trucks.  So they need to 
have -- the cross dock needs to be in somewhat close proximity to each other. You won't want to 
unload a truck and take it over here.  That is why there are loading docks on all three sides.  That 
is the portion that is going to be more the cross dock and down here is more the warehousing 
(indicating).  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Just a reminder to everybody on the Board, this is in a Light 
Industrial zone.  I know we have talked a lot about screening and everything, but we don't hold it 



ZBA 3/27/18 - Page 12

 

to the same standards in Town as we would to something adjacent to residential zones.  And to 
chime in on the front parking, we do have a Town wide in terms of the code, but I believe the 
Comprehensive Plan Committee was trying to focus on the city -- or the Chili Ave. corridor or 
the Buffalo Road corridors to try to get that in and then it -- it goes across the whole Town.  

MARK MERRY:  This is across the whole Town. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  It is one of those that the community got it and it is tough to apply 

it to all of the other zones.  
FRED TROTT:  But I mean -- 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  It doesn't -- in my opinion, it doesn't make sense in the Industrial 

zone.  
Side table?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  You guys don't have the green book, do you?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  What is a green book?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Code book of the Town of Chili?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  No.  There used to be one down here.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  And that is the one, Jimmy.  500-43(f) states -- 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Oh, I found it.  It was holding up the computer.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  500-43(f) states no front-yard parking and that's Town wide.  It's 

written in the Town wide.  We have tried to get away from that because -- in the Comprehensive 
Plan and then the Chili Center Master Plan because we want more store fronts to the front of the 
road and parking to the rear, but that is more in the corridor out front here.  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Yep.  As we just said.  
FRED TROTT:  Yeah.  It is funny, because I thought being on the Comprehensive Plan, 

that was the idea of it.  I didn't know why -- that is the tough part, when the Comprehensive Plan 
decided one corridor and then made it broad blanket code.  Anyway.  I found the green book.  

MARK MERRY:  Everything happens for a reason.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  That's right.  I was holding up the computer.  
All right.  So front parking.  Anything else?  I focused on the left side.  Now the right side.  

Lost track where I am on it.  
Side table?  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None.

Mark Merry made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application and Adam 
Cummings seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion to close the 
Public Hearing.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.

ADAM CUMMINGS:  Now moving on, once again, no SEQR for us.

Fred Trott made a motion to approve the application with no conditions, and James Wiesner 
seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion. 

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 5 yes with no conditions, and the following
finding of fact was cited:

1.  The site is located well below the Union Street roadway due to the site 
elevations.  It will not likely be visible to most travelers and neighbors.  
Pushing parking to the rear of the building would result in less 
safe travel pathways for employees, visitors, and truck drivers at the site.  

ADAM CUMMINGS:  That one is also approved.  So now we'll move on to letter C, 
which is the variance to allow loading berth to be 12.5 feet wide where 14 feet is required.  So 
Jim (Wiesner) already brought this one up, where our Town Code wants 14 feet, are you saying 
industry standard is 12 1/2?  

MR. COX:  12 1/2?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  I don't know why the history -- why ours is 14.  
MARK MERRY:  Depends on the apron.  If your apron is a certain size, your industry 

standard would be 12.5.  It is an average.  It's not really a standard.  I have seen wider docks 
depending on the turning radius.  Now you're trying to stack trucks.  They're trying to squeeze as 
many as they can so they're going with the lower 12.5.  If you look at some studies, it is 12 foot if 
you really want to stack them in there. 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  So they better have good drivers is what you're saying?  
MARK MERRY:  They're just trying to say what they're trying to do.  I get it.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Trying to keep their insurance premiums down.  
FRED TROTT:  On Jetview Drive, how wide is that?  
MR. COX:  12 1/2.  
FRED TROTT:  They're 12 1/2?  
MR. COX:  Yes.  
MR. VALERIO:  You stole my question.  
FRED TROTT:  Sorry.  
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MR. VALERIO:  We often ask if there is others in the areas with similar circumstances and 
I'm just wondering if -- if there is any other -- 

ADAM CUMMINGS:  FedEx would be the closest one on Boon Drive, but I don't 
remember what size those docks are.  

MR. VALERIO:  I don't remember them coming for a variance.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Doesn't mean we didn't catch it.  
MR. COX:  I -- I bet that FedEx is 12 1/2.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  I'm not betting.  I'm just going to say we don't know, but there is 

only one other distribution and in Jetview, you do have 12 1/2 for the same venue.  As Mark 
(Merry) said, you could go down to 12 feet by some people's studies, so it is a range between 12 
and 14.  But either way, we're here discussing it -- the only thing with -- the change if you made 
this one code compliant and went to 14 feet, how many loading dock spaces would be lost?  

MR. COX:  Probably 12. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Assuming you're dividing it, taking -- 
MR. COX:  Doing the math.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  So you're looking at about a dozen.  We'll say 16 to be safe, so.
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Paul (Wanzenreid), do you agree with that math?  It was faster than 

I can do it.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Adam (Cummings), if a train leaves the station -- (Laughter.)  
What kind of a question was that?  
MARK MERRY:  I'm surprised you didn't have the answer already.  
JAMES WIESNER:  Was 14 foot based on loading berth or parking spot?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Loading berth. 
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Loading berth. 
JAMES WIESNER:  It's defined as loading berth.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  So the parking space could be different than that.  That's just the 

loading berth.  
JAMES WIESNER:  So two distinctly different spaces there?  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  Yes.  Terminus.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Parking spots per code are 9 by 19 1/2, I think it is.  And -- 
MARK MERRY:  The ones at U of R are 6. 
PAUL WANZENRIED:  500-43(a) specifies the width as 14 feet.  
ADAM CUMMINGS:  6 feet?  What you have smaller cars at the U of R?  You guys stack 

cars at the U of R?  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None.

Fred Trott made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application and Mark Merry 
seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion to close the Public 
Hearing.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.

ADAM CUMMINGS:  All right.  Now I would like to ask for motion to adopt. 

Mark Merry made a motion to approve the application with no conditions, and Mark Valerio 
seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion. 

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 5 yes with no conditions, and the following
finding of fact was cited:

1.  The existing facility on Jetview Drive has 12.5' wide loading berths, which 
has served this company well for many years.  The width is consistent with 
industry standards.  

James Valerio made a motion to adopt the 1/23/18 Zoning Board of Appeals meeting minutes, 
and Mark Merry seconded the motion.  The Board was unanimously in favor of the motion.  

James Valerio made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Mark Merry seconded the motion.  
The Board was unanimously in favor of the motion.

The meeting ended at 8:13 p.m. 


